
Contra Costa County 
Aviation Advisory Committee 

Meeting Agenda 
500 Eagle Court, CA 94514 

hursday, September 12, 2019, 10:00 a.m. 

...... 
.-··NOTE:·· .. 
: Location ·: . . 
· .. Change!_: . . 

..... 

The Aviation Advisory Committee (AAC) will provide reasonable accommodations 
For persons with disabilities who plan to attend its scheduled meetings. 

Call the Director of Airports Office at (844) 359-8687 at least 24 hours in advance. 
Any disclosable public records related to this meeting are available for public inspection at the 

Director of Airports Office, 550 Sally Ride Drive, Concord, during normal business hours. 

1. Roll Call 

2. Public Comment Period 

3. Approval of the Aviation Advisory Committee's August 8, 2019 Meeting Minutes 

4. Consider Consent Items 
a. Accept the airport Noise & Statistics Report (July 2019) 

b. Accept the relevant Board actions that occmTed on August 6th 

5. Presentations 

a. Discuss aviation innovation oppo1iunities and status of the Vasco-Byron Highway connector project, 
Byron Airpo1i (Randy Iwasaki, Contra Costa Transportation Authority) 

6. Discussion/ Action Items 

a. Discuss items pulled from consent 

b. Discuss and take action as deemed necessary relative to the Byron Airport general plan 

amendment. Schedule, milestones and status of deliverables (Will Nelson, Department of 
Conservation and Development) 

c. Discuss new tenant and flight school, Skyview Aviation, LLC., Byron Airport 

d. Discuss new proposed locations of the public viewing plaza, control tower and other impacts with 

the new general aviation tenninal, aircraft rescue and firefighting facility and administration 
office, Buchanan Field Airport 

e. Discuss the current gate access control policy for affiliates, Buchanan Field and Byron Airport 

f. Discuss the update regarding the Byron Airpo1i public viewing plaza 

7. Future Agenda Items 

8. Adjourn 

Next AAC Meeting (tentative): October 10, 2019 at 10:00am 

Next Airport Committee Meeting (tentative): November 13, 2019 at 11:00am 



AAC Members Representing 

Dale Roberts District 1 

Cody Moore 
Airports Bus. 
Assoc. 

Eric Meinbress Member at Large 
Ronald Reagan District 3 

Derek Mims 
City of Pleasant 
Hill 

Russell Roe District 5 

Keith McMahon City of Concord 

Roger Bass District 2 
Maurice 

Member at Large 
Gunderson 
Tom Weber District 4 
Emily Barnett Member at Large 

Donna Dietrich 
Airport Neighbor -
Pacheco 

Steven Starratt 
Airport Neighbor -
Byron 

Was There a Quorum? Y or N 

ABS= Absent, Y = Present, N = No 

AAC Members 

Dale Roberts 

Cody Moore 
Eric Meinbress 

Ronald Reagan 

Derek Mims 

Russell Roe 

Keith McMahon 
Roger Bass 

Maurice Gunderson 

Tom Weber 
Emily Barnett 

Donna Dietrich 

Steven Starratt 

AVIATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
ATTENDANCE ROSTER FOR 2019 

Contact Information 
Jan Feb Mar Apr 
10 14 14 11 

datenkale@netscape.net y y y ABS 

cody@ccrjet.com ----- ----- y ABS 

ericmeinbress@comcast.net y y y ABS 
ron@rmsea.com ABS ABS y y 

derekmims@hotmail.com ABS y y ABS 

russroe@pacbell.net y y ABS y 

keithcmcmahon@gmail.com ABS y y y 

twofivexray@yahoo.com y ABS ABS y 

mau ricegunderson@mac.com y y y y 

Tr-weber@sbcglobal.net y y y y 

emilyebarnett@gmail .com y y y y 

concordcascade_mgr@equitylifestyle.com y ABS ABS y 

starratt@pacbell.net y y y y 

y y y y 

TERM EXPIRATION AND TRAINING CERTIFICATION 

May Jun 
9 13 

y y 

ABS y 

y y 

y y 

y y 

y ABS 
y y 

y y 

ABS y 

y y 

y y 

ABS ABS 

y y 

y y 

Representing 
Term Expiration Brown Act & Better Gov't Ordinance 

Date Video Completion Date 
District 1 2/29/20 8/ 6/17 
Airports Bus. Assoc. 2/28/22 3/20/19 
Member at Large 2/29/20 1/7/18 
District 3 2/28/21 4/12/16 
City of Pleasant Hill 2/28/21 1/12/17 
District 5 2/29/20 1/15/18 
City of Concord 2/28/22 3/4/ 18 
District 2 2/ 28/21 5/9/18 
Member at Large 2/28/21 4/5/16 
District 4 2/29i20 4/1.2/ 18 
Member at Large 2/28/22 3/ 10/17 
Pacheco Neighbor 2/28/21 7 /31/19 
Byron Neighbor 2/28/21 9/7/18 

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total 
11 8 12 10 14 12 # Abs 

y y 1 

y y 2 

y y 1 
y ABS 3 

y y 2 

ABS ABS 4 
y y 1 
y y 2 

y y 1 

y y 
y y 

y y 4 

y y 

y y 

Ethics Orientation for County 
officials Completion Date 

9/ 13/ 17 

3/ 21/ 19 

1/ 7/ 18 
4/12/ 16 

1/ 12/ 17 

1/ 15/ 18 

3/ 4/ 18 

6/ 25/ 18 

4/ 6/ 16 
4/ 12/ 18 

3/ 10/ 17 
12/9/ 18 

10/ 10/ 18 



DRAFT CONTRA COST A COUNTY 
AVIATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

MEETING MINUTES 
AUGUST 8, 2019 

MEETING CALLED: Chair Maurice Gunderson called the meeting to order at 10:00 AM at 
Buchanan Field Airport. 

PRESENT: Emily Barnett, Secretary, Member At-Large 
Tom Weber, Vice Chair, District IV 
Steven Starratt, Airport Neighbor- Byron Airport 
Donna Dietrich, Airport Neighbor- Pacheco 
Keith McMahon, City of Concord 
Roger Bass, District II 
Eric Meinbress, Member At-Large 
Dale Roberts, District I 
Derek Mims, City of Pleasant Hill 
Maurice Gunderson, Chair, Member At-Large 
Cody Moore, Airpo1i Business Association 

ABSENT: Russell Roe, District V 
Ronald Reagan, District III 

STAFF: Beth Lee, Assistant Director of Airports - Administration 
Russell Milburn, Assistant Director of Airports - Operations 

COMMENTS 
BY CHAIR: Chair Maurice Gunderson welcomed the attendees. 

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD: 

Beginning August 15, 2019, Nut Tree Airport (KVCB) will no longer be on the same common traffic 
advisory frequency (CTAF 123.05) as Byron Airport. Once published, KVCB CTAF will change to 122.85. 

APPROVAL OF 
7/11/19 MINUTES: 

APPROVAL OF 
CONSENT ITEMS: 

Moved by Emily Barnett; seconded by Cody Moore. Yes: Tom Weber, Eric 
Meinbress, Dale Roberts, Keith McMahon, Roger Bass, Steven Starratt, 
Maurice Gunderson, Derek Mims and Donna Dietrich. No: None. Abstained: 
None. Absent: Russell Roe and Ronald Reagan. 

Moved by Derek Mims; seconded by Roger Bass. Yes: Tom Weber, Eric 
Meinbress, Dale Roberts, Keith McMahon, Steven Starratt, Maurice 
Gunderson, Cody Moore, Emily Barnett and Donna Dietrich. No: None. 
Abstained: None. Absent: Russell Roe and Ronald Reagan. 



DISCUSSION/ ACTION ITEMS: 

a. Discuss items pulled from consent 

There were no items pulled from consent. 

b. Discuss and take action as deemed necessary relative to the Byron Airport General Plan Amendment 

There are still many issues with the current administrative draft environmental impact report (ADEIR). The 
Department of Conservation and Development convened a meeting with Airport staff and Dudek (project 
manager and senior staff) to discuss the vaiious problems and concerns with the documents to date. The senior 
staff agreed to be more involved in the project going forward. The ADEIR will be revised to correct internal 
errors and inconsistencies. Two components, transportation and biology, continue to be the most problematic. 
Follow-up meetings will be scheduled with the consultants and relevant County staff to address outstanding 
issues. 

c. Discuss and provide input regarding initial general aviation, aircraft rescue and firefighting facility, 
and administration office, Buchanan Field Airport 

Airport staff are looking for input from the AAC on the site plan for the new general aviation, aircraft rescue 
and firefighting (ARFF) facility, and administration office at Buchanan Field Airport. Staff will schedule 
discussions with the airports' stakeholders for input. The site plan must be identified before proceeding with 
the environmental review process. 

d. Discuss the status of the Skyview Aviation lease at 505 Eagle Court, Byron Airport 

The lease with Skyview Aviation, LLC. was approved by the Board of Supervisors (Board) on August 6111• 

Skyview Aviation is a flight school and maintenance facility based out of Tracy, CA. They will be operating 
out of a hangar at 505 Eagle Court at Byron Airport. They will be opening for business soon and hope to 
expand ( once in full operation) to eventually become a Fixed-Base Operator at Byron Airport. 

e. Discuss the new office construction at the 700 Sally Ride Drive aviation hangar, Buchanan Field Airport 

Tenants of the large aviation hangar, located at 700 Sally Ride Drive on the west side at Buchanan Field 
Airport, are in the beginning stages of building an approximate 2,000 square foot office building. The building 
permit process is nearing completion. Airpoti staff will continue to provide updates. 

f. Discuss the reversion of the 280-288 Buchanan Field Road property back to the County, Buchanan 
Field Airport 

The property located on the west side of Buchanan Field Airport reverted to the County on July 7, 2019. The 
building, which consists of warehouses and office space, is occupied by eight existing tenants. Seven tenants 
have chosen to enter into a month-to-month license agreement with the County. Airport staff have initiated 
the unlawful detainer process to have the remaining tenant removed. There is available space that could be 
used for the aviation technology and innovation attraction program. The Federal Aviation Administration 
(FAA) requires that non-aeronautical use must pay fair market value for property designated for aviation use. 
As such, staff has hired an appraiser to come out on Monday, August 19th , to do a fair market analysis of 
property. 

2 



g. Discuss the 17-acre development, Buchanan Field Airport 

Airport staff have received the preliminary site plans and are negotiating lease terms with Montecito 
Development Company for the 17-acre parcel located on the west side of Buchanan Field Airpo1i. The 
AAC expressed concern about the traffic impact on Marsh Drive once development begins. Traffic will be 
analyzed and addressed during the environmental review process. 

h. General discussion of touring other regional airports with new GA terminals, Buchanan Field Airport 

Several AAC members will be visiting other general aviation (GA) tenninals at various airports to take pictures 
and note the pros and cons of each for discussion at the November 14th AAC meeting. The AAC asked if the 
architect, The KP A Group, could attend the meeting to discuss Buchanan Field's proposed GA building and 
share their experience as it relates to other GA terminal designs. 

i. Discuss the new proposed locations of the public viewing plaza, control tower and other impacts with the 
new GA terminal, ARFF facility and administration office, Buchanan Field Airport 

The AAC discussed how the proposed location of the new GA tenninal location would impact adjacent areas 
such as the location of the control tower and public viewing plaza. The designated long-term location of a control 
tower (per the Airport Master Plan) is on the west side of Buchanan Field Airport near the large aviation hangar 
at 700 Sally Ride Drive. There is a desire to connect the public viewing plaza to the new terminal to make it 
more welcoming for the public. 

j. Discuss FAA grant funding and project timing for the Runway 14L/32R pavement rehabilitation project, 
Buchanan Field Airport 

$5.3 million dollars in grant funding for the runway rehabilitation project has been tentatively approved by the 
FAA. The reason the approval is tentative is because the project bids came back higher than what was estimated 
and as such, the grant amount had to be adjusted and formally reapproved by the FAA. 

k. Discuss the work plan to be submitted to the San Francisco Bay Regional Water Control Board (Water 
Board) regarding per and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS), Buchanan Field Airport 

Airport staff submitted the work plan for PF AS testing ahead of schedule. Staff are now waiting for written 
approval from the Water Board so they may proceed with testing. To give background, 31 commercial airports 
in California, were advised by the Water Board that the FAA required firefighting foam, contains PF AS 
substances which may be harmful to our health and water system. 

I. Discuss the status of the airport innovation and technology business attraction program Buchanan Field 
and Byron Airport 

Airport staff continue to develop a business attraction strategy to proactively position Buchanan Field and Byron 
Airport as designated test sites for aviation technology businesses (both established and emerging). Buchanan 
Field Airport currently has two tech staiiups and three companies have expressed interest in the Byron Airport. 
Staff reported the level of interest is incredible. The AAC thanked Chainnan, Maurice Gunderson, and County 
staff for their efforts. 

3 



m. Discuss Byron Airport AAC meeting 

The next AAC meeting will be held at Byron Airport at 500 Eagle Court, Byron, CA 94514 on Thursday, 
September 12, 2019, at 10:00 a.m .. 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS/COMMENTS 

• Discuss and provide input for the proposed general aviation tenninal, aircraft rescue and firefighting 
facility and administration office, Buchanan Field Airport (November agenda) 

• Discuss the Byron Airport General Plan Amendment (Will Nelson, Department of Conservation and 
Development) 

• Discuss the biology component of the ADEIR for the Byron Airport General Plan Amendment (October 
agenda) 

• Discuss airport innovation opportunities with Contra Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA), Byron 
Airport (Randy Iwasaki, CCT A) 

• Discuss new tenant and flight school, Skyview Aviation, LLC., Byron Airport 
• General discussion of the Low Altitude Auth01ization and Notification Capability program for 

recreational drone use in controlled airspaces (October agenda) 
• Discuss new proposed locations of the public viewing plaza, control tower and other impacts with the 

new general aviation terminal, aircraft rescue and firefighting facility and administration office, 
Buchanan Field Airport 

ADJOURNMENT: The Chair adjourned the meeting at 10:58 a.m .. 

4 



FINAL 

MEETING CALLED: 

PRESENT: 

ABSENT: 

STAFF: 

COMMENTS 
BY CHAIR: 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY 
A VIA TI ON ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

MEETING MINUTES 
JULY 11, 2019 

Chair Maurice Gunderson called the meeting to order at 10:00 AM at 
Buchanan Field Airpo1t. 

Emily Barnett, Secretary, Member At-Large 
Tom Weber, Vice Chair, District IV 
Steven Starratt, Airport Neighbor - Byron Airport 
Donna Dietrich, Airpo1t Neighbor - Pacheco 
Keith McMahon, City of Concord 
Ronald Reagan, District III 
Roger Bass, District II 
Eric Meinbress, Member At-Large 
Dale Roberts, District I 
Derek Mims, City of Pleasant Hill 
Maurice Gunderson, Chair, Member At-Large 
Cody Moore, Airp01t Business Association 

Russell Roe, District V 

Keith Freitas, Director of Airports 
Beth Lee, Assistant Director of Airp01ts - Administration 

Chair Maurice Gunderson welcomed the attendees. 

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD: 

There were a couple items brought up during public comment regarding hangar doors at Buchanan Field 
Airport and airport innovation opportunities with Contra Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA) at Byron 
Airp01t. 

APPROVAL OF 
6/13/19 MINUTES: 

APPROVAL OF 
CONSENT ITEMS: 

Moved by Tom Weber; seconded by Derek Mims. Yes: Emily Barnett, Eric 
Meinbress, Dale Roberts, Keith McMahon, Roger Bass, Ronald Reagan, Steven 
Starratt, Maurice Gunderson, Cody Moore and Donna Dietrich. No: None. 
Abstained: None. Absent: Russell Roe. 

Moved by Roger Bass; seconded by Steven Starratt. Yes: Tom Weber, Ronald 
Reagan, Eric Meinbress, Dale Roberts, Keith McMahon, Derek Mims, Maurice 
Gunderson, Cody Moore, Emily Barnett and Donna Dietrich. No: None. 
Abstained: None. Absent: Russell Roe. 



DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS: 

a. Discuss items pulled from consent 

There were no items pulled from consent. 

b. Discuss and take action as deemed necessary relative to the Byron Airport General Plan Amendment 

The contract with consultants, Dudek, has been extended to the end of the calendar year 2020. County Staff 
received the administrative draft environmental impact rep011, hoping to receive comments by County staff 
this August. The AAC requested Will Nelson with the department of Conservation and Development (DCD), 
to attend the next AAC meeting. 

c. Discuss the notice from the San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Board (State Water Board) 
regarding Per and Polyfluoroalkyl substances 

This item is an update from the June 11 th AAC meeting. Airport staff, along with 31 commercial airp011s in 
California, were advised by the State Water Board that firefighting foam, which is required by the Federal 
Aviation Administration, contains per and polyfluoroalkyl substances which may be harmful to our health 
and water system. 31 commercial airports were mandated to create a work plan and perform testing. Staff 
have been researching responses from larger airports. A work plan must be submitted to the State Water Board 
by August, then will have 90 days to perform testing and submit an analysis after the work plan is approved. 

d. Discuss the status of the Aviation Innovation and Technology Business Attraction Program, Buchanan 
Field and Byron Airport 

The County Airports Division is exploring ways to proactively position Buchanan Field and Byron Airport to 
attract aviation innovation and technology businesses (both established and emerging). Staff continues to 
work on a marketing strategy. Airport staff mentioned that there is available space located at 280-288 
Buchanan Field Road. The prope11y reverted to the County on July 7, 2019. The general concept is to create 
an efficient and accessible program that is flexible for emerging aviation businesses. 

e. Review and discuss input of the initial layout plan for the new general aviation Terminal, 
administration office and aircraft rescue and firefighting building, Buchanan Field Airport (see 
attachment 

The AAC reviewed a building layout of the proposed terminal building at Buchanan Field Airport. 
The building will include administrative office space, airport rescue and firefighting space, public 
space to support scheduled/unscheduled air service providers, office space for aviation businesses, 
and meeting space for the general public. Staff is looking to break ground in 2021 . The AAC provided 
comments and compared other airport terminals to assist Airport staff in the refining process. 

f. Discuss updates regarding JetSuiteX service, Buchanan Field Airport 

Beginning September 1, 2019, J etSuiteX will be discontinuing direct flights to Las Vegas; however, the three 
daily flights to Burbank will remain unchanged. The AAC expressed concern, but airport staff reassured them 
that JetSuiteX is fully committed to Buchanan Field Airport. 

2 



g. Discuss new office construction at the Conco Aviation hangar, Buchanan Field Airport 

On May 29th, DCD approved the application for Conco Aviation Center (Conco) to build a 2,000 square 
foot office space attached to their large aircraft hangar located at 700 Sally Ride Drive at Buchanan Field 
Airp01i. Conco is cunently applying for building permits. DCD Permitting Building Division staff 
reports that permit review will take 6-8 weeks. 

h. Discuss a self-service fuel option, Buchanan Field Airport 

Bob Thompson with Pacific States Aviation (PSA) rep01ied they will soon be attempting to provide a self
service fueling station at 101 John Glenn Drive at Buchanan Field Airpo1i. The land survey for the project is 
complete. The tank provider, Bassco, with the assistance of the PSA fuel vendor, Avfuel, will provide one tank. 
PSA is in the process of trying to put together a package to submit to the DCD Permitting Building Division. 

i. Discuss updates regarding the new aircraft hangar and tie-down agreements, Buchanan Field and Byron 
Airport 

The process of updating the new hangar and tiedown agreements is nearing completion. Once complete, airport 
staff will send to tenants for review and comment. Staff's goal is to make the agreements more regionally user 
friendly; however, tenants should also note that tiedown tenants will soon be required to provide proof of 
insurance. The AAC discussed concerns regarding non-operational aircraft on the airfield. Airp01i staff are 
aware and are working with Risk Management to resolve. 

j. Discuss the 280-288 Buchanan Field Road property lease end and reversion back to the County 

This property is located on the west side of Buchanan Field Airport. The property was previously leased to Lekas 
and reverted to the County on July 7, 2019 after 55 years. Airport staff are working with the current tenants to 
execute new month-to-month agreements with the County. There is space available and staff hopes to use this 
as part of a marketing strategy to attract aviation technology businesses. 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS/COMMENTS 

• Discuss UAS/drone opportunities with CCTA at Byron Airport 
• Discuss the status of the Skyview Aviation lease, Byron Airport 
• Discuss other regional airports with new general aviation terminals, Buchanan Field Airport 
• Discuss the 3-acre/17-acre development, Buchanan Field Airport 
• Discuss new proposed locations of the public viewing plaza, control tower and other impacts with the 

new general aviation terminal, aircraft rescue and firefighting facility and administration office, 
Buchanan Field Airp01i 

ADJOURNMENT: The Chair adjourned the meeting at 10:49 a.m .. 

3 



Agenda Item 4.a 

Noise Abatement Statistics 

July 2019 

II Ill II Ill I 11111 1111111111111 I l l I I II 111111 

# Of Callers Complaints 
2019 2019 2018 

TOTAL NUMBER OF COMPLAINTS 14 16 10 

LOCATION OF COMPLAINTS 
Concord 4 6 2 

Pleasant Hill 4 4 5 
Pacheco 2 2 1 
Martinez 1 1 1 

Byron 0 0 0 
Other 3 3 1 

Subtotal 14 16 10 
Special Events 0 0 0 

Total Number of Complaints 14 16 10 

COMPLAINTS ASSOCIATED WITH 
Buchanan Field Airport 11 8 

Byron Airport 0 0 
Law EnforcemenULifeguard Lights 3 2 

Non-associated 2 0 
11 I 11 1 1 111 11 11 11111 

TIME OF INCIDENT 
Day (0700 - 1700) 8 4 

Evening (1700 - 2200) 6 0 
Night (2200 - 0700) 2 4 

All Times 0 2 

TYPE OF COMPLAINT 
Noise 7 5 

Low Flying 5 1 
Noise and Low Flying 4 3 

Too Many Aircraft 0 0 
Other 0 1 

TYPE OF AIRCRAFT 
Jet 3 3 

Propeller 7 2 
Helicopter 3 3 
All Types 0 0 
Unknown 3 2 

TOTAL AIRCRAFT OPERATIONS 9,057 9,370 

COMPLAINTS PER 10,000 OPERATIONS 18 11 
COMPLAINTS PER 10,000 OPERATIONS· BUCHANAN ONLY 12 9 
January 
(4) - Complaints from (1) Concord Household 

&ct! 
(1) Non-assoc. unknown, Walnut Creek 

June 
(3) Special Event- Wings of Freedom 

February 
(1) Non-assoc. unknown, Walnut Creek 

May 
(3) Complaints from (1) Martinez individual 

,Mt 
(1) Other, low flying, Walnut Creek 
(1) non-assoc. unknown, Alamo 
(1) Non-assoc. unknown, Discovery Bay 

111 1 1111 1 11111 II II 

YTD YTD % CHANGE 
2019 2018 

121 104 

25 50 
33 19 

4 3 
8 4 
0 1 

18 15 
88 92 
33 12 

121 104 

93 78 
0 1 

10 8 
18 17 

78 68 
16 18 
14 11 
13 7 

49 45 
10 14 
60 39 
0 1 
2 5 

16 23 
68 42 
12 15 

7 8 
18 16 

57,192 68,979 

21 15 
16 11 

March 
(5) Non-assoc. unknown, Antioch 
(1) non-assoc. jet, Walnut Creek 

16% 

-50% 
74% 
33% 

100% 
0% 

20% 
-4% 

175% 
16% 

I ll 

-17% 

40% 
44% 

(1) Non-assoc. unknown, Pleasant Hill 
(4) Complaints from (1) Concord Household 
(30) Special Event- Ford Tri-Motor 



July 2019 

Total Operations 
Local Operations 
Itinerant Operations 
Total Instrument Ops 

100 Octane 
Jet Fuel 

Byron Fuel 

Bay Area Skydiving 
Fuel Purchased (gallons) 

Glider Operations 
Tow Aircraft 
Glider Aircraft 

Contra Costa County Airports 
Monthly Operations Report 

Total 

July 
2019 

9,057 
4,094 
3,773 
923 

23,550 
102,174 
125,724 

13,738 

1,500 

166 
166 

July 
2018 

9,370 
4,442 
3,867 
863 

20,631 
114,703 
135,334 

12,345 

2,560 

0 
0 

YTD 
2019 

57,192 
27,092 
22,272 
6,398 

150,228 
727,786 
878,014 

67,246 

10,256 

1,146 
1,146 

July 2018 Glider Operations impacted by in operable tow plane 

YTD 
2018 

68,979 
36,436 
24,071 
6,946 

150,639 
768,327 
918,966 

57,748 

10,071 

898 
898 

% CHANGE 
2018/2019 

-17% 
-26% 
-7% 
-8% 

0% 
-5% 
-4% 

16% 

2% 

28% 
28% 



Contra Costa County 
Board of Supervisors 

Approved Board Orders 
Relating to County Airports 

The following certified Board Orders are attached: 

· Agenda Item 4.b 

August 6, 2019 .... .. ..... .. .......... .. ........ AUTHORIZE County Counsel to initiate legal action, if 
necessary, to recover possession of a Tiedown space 
located at Buchanan Field Airport from Ross Barber. 
(100% Airport Enterprise Funds) 

August 6, 2019 ... . .. .... ........ .. .............. APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Director of Airports, or 
designee, to execute a 15-year ground lease with 
Skyview Aviation, LLC, for approximately 7,500 square 
feet of a County-owned aircraft maintenance hangar 
located at 505 Eagle Court at the Byron Airport. (100% 
Airport Enterprise Funds) 



To: Board of Supervisors 

From: Keith Freitas, Airports Director 

Date: August 6, 2019 

C. 11 

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: AUTHORIZE COUNTY COUNSEL TO INITIATE LEGAL ACTION WITH ROSS BARBER, PACHECO 
AREA 

RECOMMENDATION{S): 
AUTHORIZE County Counsel to initiate legal action to recover possession of Tiedown 
space from Ross Barber, if necessa1y. 

FISCAL IMP ACT: 
There is no impact on the General Fund. The Airport Enterprise Fund will cover the cost of 
any legal action. 

[tj APPROVE • OTHER 

[tj RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR • RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On: 08/06/2019 [tj APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED • OTHER 

Clerks Notes: 

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS 

A YE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor 

Candace Andersen, District II 
Supervisor 

Diane Burgis, District Ill 
Supervisor 

Karen Mitchoff, District IV 
Supe1visor 

Federal D. G lover, District V 
Supervisor 

Contact: Beth Lee (925) 
68 1-4200 

cc: 

l hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board 
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED: August 6, 2019 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

By: Stacey M. Boyd, Deputy 



BACKGROUND: 

On April 7, 1989, the County entered in to a Tiedown Permit with Ross Barber (Tenant) for 
storage of his aircraft in tiedown space H-05, which is located on the East Ramp of 
Buchanan Field Airport. Because of his failure to pay rent in full , Tenant is currently in 
default under the Agreement. 

Tenant was sent an initial delinquency notice iri July 2018. Since then there has been an 
additional four ( 4) Notifications of Delinquency sent by certified mail, and Airport staff has 
spoken directly with the Tenant in follow-up phone calls. In accordance with the tiedown 
permit Section 7, the County may terminate the tiedown permit if: A.) the Tenant has been 
delinquent in paying the monthly rate three (3) or more times and/or; B.) there is a violation 
of any of the Terms and/or Conditions of the agreement, including failure to pay the 
monthly rate before delinquency and in its sole discretion, may but need not give Tenant an 
opportunity to correct the violation. 

Airport staff served the Tenant a 3-day Notice to Quit on July 23, 2019, to terminate the 
Tiedown Permit for failure to pay rent and notified him that his aircraft needed to be 
removed before the termination date. Airport staff is requesting that County Counsel be 
authorized to initiate legal action to recover possession of the tiedown space if the Tenant 
does not vacate. Such actions are consistent with adopted Airport policies. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

Failure to initiate legal action against Tenant would result in the Airport being unable to 
enforce adopted Airport policies and procedures. 



To: Board of Supervisors 

From: Keith Freitas, Airports Director 

Date: August 6, 2019 

C. 12 

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Approve & Auth to Execute a Long-Tenn Lease w/ Skyview Aviation LLC for County-Owned Aircraft Maint Bldg & 
Adjacent Land at Byron, Byron Area (Dst 3) 

RECOMMENDATION {S): 
APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Director of Airports, or designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, a 
15-year ground lease between the County, as Lessor, and Skyview Aviation, LLC, as Tenant, for the lease 
of an approximate 7,500 square foot County-owned aircraft maintenance hangar building located at 505 
Eagle Court and about 0.02 acres adjacent to the hangar at the Byron Airport. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
There is no impact on the General Fund. The Airport Enterprise Fund will receive lease and other revenue 
and the County General Fund will receive property, sales and possessory interest tax revenues from this 
development. The ground rent will begin at $1,296 per month ( or $15,552 per year) and increase annually 
by the CPI inflator. 

BACKGROUND: 
The 7,500 square foot aircraft maintenance hangar building is owned by the County and located on the 
south side of Byron Airport, across the road from the Airport office 

[2) APPROVE • OTHER 

[Zj RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINTSTRA TOR • RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On: 08/06/2019 [2) APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED • OTHER 

Clerks Notes: 

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS 

A YE: John Gioia, Distric t I Supervisor 

Candace Andersen, District II 
Supervisor 

Diane B urgis, District III 
Supervisor 

Karen Mitchoff, District IV 
Supervisor 

Federal D. Glover, District V 
Supervisor 

Contact: Beth Lee (925) 
681-4200 

cc: 

I hereby ce11ify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board 
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED: August 6, 201 9 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

By: Stacey M. Boyd, Deputy 



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D) 

building. The aircraft maintenance hangar building is designated for aviation use on the Byron A irp011 
Master Plan. 

Federal Aviation Administration's (FAA) Airports District Office (ADO) regarding use and 
development at Byron Airport, the County solicited competitive interest from commercial tenants at 
both County airports and to those persons who have asked to be included on notification list for 
development and use of County airport buildings at either of the County airp01is. The County received 
one additional letter of interest to lease this facility. 

On Febrnary 12, 2019, the Board of Supervisors authorized staff to negotiate a lease for this building 
with the top-ranked proposer, Skyview Aviation, LLC. This action was consistent with the master 
developer selection process that was approved by the Board of Supervisors on May 23, 2006, whereby 
projects with competitive interest are to be reviewed and ranked by a selection committee. 

County staff has negotiated lease terms with Skyview Aviation LLC. The effective date of this new lease 
is August 1, 2019. The lease has a five-year term that expires in 2024 and the tenant has the right to 
request two additional five-year extensions of the original tenn, which the County may deny in its sole 
discretion. Leasing of this building and adjacent land has been presented and discussed with the Aviation 
Advisory Committee and the Airpo1i Committee during the solicitation and lease development 
processes. 

Use of the maintenance hangar and adjacent land for an aviation maintenance and flight training 
business will expand economic development activity at the Byron Airport. This general aviation focus is 
consistent with the policies identified within the Byron Airport Master Plan. Further, the lease will 
provide rental and sales tax revenue to the Airport Enterprise Fund and County General Fund. 

Unless and until a final lease agreement is fully executed by all parties, this Board Order, any draft lease 
agreement, other communications or conduct of the parties shall have absolutely no legal effect, may not 
be used to impose any legally binding obligation on the County and may not be used as evidence of any 
oral or implied agreement between the parties or as evidence of the tem1s and conditions of any implied 
agreement. 

A copy of the lease signed by the Tenant is attached. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

Delay in leasing the maintenance hangar will result in a delay in the expansion of aviation services at 
Byron Airport and may negatively impact the Airport Enterprise Fund and the County General Fund. 

ATTACHMENTS 
Skyview Aviation Lease 


